INCORPORATED UNDER THE MISSOURI NONPROFIT CORPORATION ACT

BYLAWS OF

THE EVERGREEN PROJECT

ADOPTED ______, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ARTICLE I: LOCATION AND OFFICES | 1 |
|--|---------------|
| Section 1:1 Principal Office. | 1 |
| Section 1:2 Other Offices. | 1 |
| Section 1:3 Registered Office and Agent | 1 |
| 2201011 10 1200121212 011102 1112 1202. | |
| ARTICLE II: MEMBERS | l |
| SECTION 2:1 GENERAL | 1 |
| ARTICLE III: DIRECTORS | 1 |
| Section 3:1 General Powers and Duties. | 1 |
| SECTION 3:2 NUMBER | 2 |
| Section 3:3 Flection | 2 |
| SECTION 3:4 TERM OF OFFICE. | 2 |
| SECTION 3:5 REMOVAL | |
| Section 3:6 Resignation. | |
| SECTION 3:7 VACANCIES. | |
| SECTION 3.8 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS | |
| SECTION 3:9 REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES. | |
| Section 3:10 Regular Meetings. | |
| SECTION 3-11 SPECIAL MEETINGS | |
| SECTION 3:12 PLACE OF MEETINGS. | |
| SECTION 3:13 WAIVER | |
| SECTION 3:14 OUORUM: ACT OF THE BOARD. | |
| SECTION 3:15 ACTIONS BY BOARD WITHOUT A MEETING. | |
| SECTION 3:16 CONFLICT OF INTEREST TRANSACTIONS. | |
| SECTION 5.10 CONFERCT OF INTEREST TRANSACTIONS. | |
| ARTICLE IV: COMMITTEES | 5 |
| Section 4:1 The Executive Committee. | 5 |
| SECTION 4:2 THE FINANCE COMMITTEE. | 5 |
| Section 4:3 Other Committees. | 5 |
| SECTION 4:4 LIMITED AUTHORITY OF COMMITTEES. | |
| SECTION 4:5 MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES. | 6 |
| SECTION 4:6 ACTIONS OF COMMITTEES | 6 |
| | _ |
| ARTICLE V: OFFICERS | 7 |
| Section 5:1 Officers. | 7 |
| SECTION 5:2 APPOINTMENT AND TERM OF OFFICE. | 7 |
| SECTION 5:3 PRESIDENT/CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. | |
| SECTION 5:4 VICE-CHAIRMAN | 7 |
| SECTION 5:5 TREASURER. | 8 |
| SECTION 5:6 SECRETARY | 8 |
| SECTION 5:7 BONDING. | 8 |
| SECTION 5:8 RESIGNATION OF OFFICERS. | 8 |
| SECTION 5:9 REMOVAL OF OFFICERS. | 8 |
| SECTION 5:10 VACANCIES. | 8 |
| ARTICLE VI: MISCELLANEOUS | 9 |
| | |
| SECTION 6:1 CORPORATE SEAL. | <u></u> 9 |
| SECTION 6:2 FISCAL YEAR. | <u></u> 9 |
| SECTION 6:3 AMENDMENTS OF BYLAWS OR ARTICLES. | <u></u> 9 |
| SECTION 6:4-USE OF FUNDS AND PROPERTY. | <u></u> 9 |
| SECTION 6:5 ACCEPTANCE OF REJECTION OF GJETS | 9 |

| Section 6:6 Execution of Instruments. | <u> </u> |
|---|-----------|
| Section 6:7 Voting Stock. | <u></u> 9 |
| SECTION 6:8 REGISTERED SECURITIES. | <u></u> 9 |
| Section 6:9 Executive Director. | |
| Section 6:10 Severability. | |
| Section 6:11 Books and Records. | |
| Section 6:12 Indemnification and Liability of Directors and Officers. | |
| SECTION 6:13 DISSOLUTION. | |
| | |
| ARTICLE I: LOCATION AND OFFICES | 1 |
| SECTION 1:1 PRINCIPAL OFFICE. | 1 |
| SECTION 1:2 OTHER OFFICES. | 1 1 |
| SECTION 1:3 REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT. | 1 |
| | |
| ARTICLE II: MEMBERS | <u></u> 1 |
| SECTION 2:1 GENERAL. | 1 |
| | |
| ARTICLE III: DIRECTORS | <u></u> 1 |
| SECTION 3:1 GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES. | 1 |
| SECTION 3:1 GENERAL I OWERS AND BUTTES. SECTION 3:2 NUMBER. | 1 |
| SECTION 3:3 ELECTION. | |
| SECTION 3:4 TERM OF OFFICE. | |
| SECTION 3:5 REMOVAL. | |
| SECTION 3:6 RESIGNATION. | |
| | |
| SECTION 3:7 VACANCIES. | |
| SECTION 3:8 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS. | |
| SECTION 3:9 REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES. | |
| SECTION 3:10 REGULAR MEETINGS. | |
| SECTION 3:11 SPECIAL MEETINGS. | 3 |
| SECTION 3:12 PLACE OF MEETINGS. | <u></u> 3 |
| SECTION 3:13 WAIVER. SECTION 3:14 QUORUM; ACT OF THE BOARD. | 3 |
| SECTION 3:14 QUORUM; ACT OF THE BOARD. | <u></u> 4 |
| SECTION 3:15 ACTIONS BY BOARD WITHOUT A MEETING. | |
| SECTION 3:16 CONFLICT OF INTEREST TRANSACTIONS. | <u></u> 4 |
| ARTICLE IV: COMMITTEES | 5 |
| | |
| SECTION 4:1 THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. | |
| SECTION 4:2 THE FINANCE COMMITTEE. | |
| SECTION 4:3 STANDING CONFERENCE COMMITTEE. | <u></u> 5 |
| SECTION 4:4 OTHER COMMITTEES. | |
| SECTION 4:5 LIMITED AUTHORITY OF COMMITTEES. | |
| SECTION 4:6 MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES. | |
| SECTION 4:7 ACTIONS OF COMMITTEES. | <u></u> 6 |
| ARTICLE V: OFFICERS | 7 |
| | |
| SECTION 5:1 OFFICERS. | |
| SECTION 5:2 APPOINTMENT AND TERM OF OFFICE. | |
| SECTION 5:3 PRESIDENT/CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. | |
| SECTION 5:4 VICE-CHAIRMAN. | |
| SECTION 5:5 TREASURER. | |
| SECTION 5:6 SECRETARY. | 8 |
| SECTION 5:7 BONDING. | |
| SECTION 5:8 RESIGNATION OF OFFICERS. | 8 |
| Section 5.0 Demoval of Opercept | 0 |

| SECTION 5:10 VACANCIES. | <u></u> 8 |
|---|------------|
| ARTICLE VI: MISCELLANEOUS | <u></u> 9 |
| SECTION 6:1 CORPORATE SEAL. | 9 |
| SECTION 6:2 FISCAL YEAR. | |
| SECTION 6:3 AMENDMENTS OF BYLAWS OR ARTICLES. | |
| SECTION 6:4 USE OF FUNDS AND PROPERTY. | 9 |
| SECTION 6:5 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF GIFTS. | 9 |
| SECTION 6:6 EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS. | 9 |
| SECTION 6:7 VOTING STOCK. | 9 |
| SECTION 6:8 REGISTERED SECURITIES. | 9 |
| SECTION 6:9 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR; OTHER EMPLOYEES AND CONTRACTORS. | |
| SECTION 6:10 SEVERABILITY. | <u></u> 10 |
| SECTION 6:11 BOOKS AND RECORDS. | 10 |
| SECTION 6:12 INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS. | <u></u> 11 |
| SECTION 6:13 DISSOLUTION. | 13 |

BYLAWS OF THE EVERGREEN PROJECT

ARTICLE 1: LOCATION AND OFFICES

Section 1:1 Principal Office.

The principal office of The Evergreen Project (the "Corporation") shall be at such place as the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board") may from time to time determine, but until a change is effected such principal office where the corporate records are kept shall be at 111 E. Broadway, Suite 220, Columbia, Missouri 65203.

Section 1:2 Other Offices.

The Corporation also may have other offices, in such places (within or without the State of Missouri) as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 1:3 Registered Office and Agent.

The registered office of the Corporation shall be maintained in the State of Missouri and may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office. The registered agent of the Corporation shall maintain a street address identical to the street address of the registered office of the Corporation.

ARTICLE II: MEMBERS

Section 2:1 General.

The Corporation shall have no members, as set forth in the Corporation's articles of incorporation (the "Articles").

ARTICLE III: DIRECTORS

Section 3:1 General Powers and Duties.

The Board shall control and manage the business and property of the Corporation. The Board may exercise all such powers of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things, except as may be expressly limited by law, the Articles, or elsewhere in these Bylaws. Responsibility for the fiscal conduct of the Corporation rests with the Board. The Board shall endeavor to: (1) promote, support, and advance the development of the Evergreen software; (2) support and facilitate the growth of the international community of Evergreen software users; and (3) foster and protect the Corporation's assets.

Section 3:2 Number.

The Board shall consist of individuals. The number of Directors constituting the Board may be increased or decreased by amendment to this Section, provided that such number shall always be at least three. The initial number of Directors of the Corporation shall be nine (9).

Section 3:3 Election.

At each annual meeting of the Board, the Board acting by and through a majority of all Directors voting at a meeting with a quorum, shall elect Directors to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting. Elections shall be conducted in accordance with procedures established by the Board. The Board may solicit candidates by polling or requesting suggestions from the community of Evergreen software users. The Board will endeavor to elect Directors that are representative of the community of Evergreen software users, subject to the qualification requirements of law, the Articles, and these Bylaws.

Section 3:4 Term of Office.

Board members shall serve three (3) year terms and may serve consecutive terms up to a combination of terms totaling not more than nine (9) years. Terms shall begin at the annual meeting of the Board. The term of a Director may be for less than three (3) years, upon the election of the Board acting by and through a majority of all Directors voting at a meeting with a quorum, to maintain or facilitate the Directors serving staggered terms.

Section 3:5 Removal.

Any Director may be removed by the Board acting by and through a majority of all Directors voting at a meeting with a quorum called for the purpose of removing the Director. The meeting notice shall state that the purpose, or one of the purposes, of the meeting is to remove one or more Directors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Director may be removed without prior notice if said Director has not attended three (3) consecutive annual Board meetings and a majority of the Directors then in office vote in favor of the removal.

Section 3:6 Resignation.

A Director can resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Board, the President, or the Secretary. The resignation will become effective upon delivery of the notice unless the notice specifies a later effective date.

Section 3:7 Vacancies.

Any vacancy occurring in the Board, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of Directors, shall be filled by the Board. If the Directors remaining in office constitute fewer than a quorum of the Board, the Directors may fill the vacancy by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors remaining in office. In the case of mid-term appointments of Directors, the time between a Director's appointment and the next annual meeting shall not be considered when calculating the term limits of the Director.

Section 3:8 Compensation of Directors.

No Director shall be entitled to compensation for his or hersuch person's services as a Director, including attendance at any meeting of the Board or of any Committee thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Director may be compensated for non-Director duties performed for the Corporation.

Section 3:9 Reimbursement of Expenses.

The Board may provide that Directors receive reimbursement for transportation and other expenses incident to their attendance at any meeting of the Board or any Committee thereof.

Section 3:10 Regular Meetings.

The Board shall meet a minimum of one (1) time per fiscal year and at such places as shall be determined by the Board. Directors shall be given at least seven (7) days' notice of regularly scheduled meetings. Meetings may take place in person, by telephone, by video, over the Internet, or any other effective form of electronic conferencing, or by a combination of the aforementioned modes of communication by which all Directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order to the extent that those rules are not inconsistent with these Bylaws.

Section 3:11 Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or at least twenty (20) percent of the Directors in office upon delivery to each Director either in person—or, by mail, postage prepaid—and, addressed to such Director at the Director's address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, or by email addressed to such Director at the Director's email address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, of not less than two (2) days' notice of the date, time, place and purpose of the meeting.

Section 3:12 Place of Meetings.

The Board shall hold its meetings at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place within or without the State of Missouri as it may from time to time determine.

Section 3:13 Waiver.

A Director may waive any notice required by law, the Articles or these Bylaws at any time by filing a signed, written waiver with the minutes or corporate records. A Director's attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any notice required by law, the Articles or

these Bylaws unless the Director, upon arriving at the meeting or prior to the vote on a matter not properly noticed, objects to lack of notice and does not vote for or assent to the objected to action.

Section 3:14 Quorum; Act of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided by law, the Articles, or by the Bylaws, a majority of the Directors in office immediately before commencement of the meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Directors present at a meeting, or the Director, if there be only one present, or the Secretary if there be no Director present, may adjourn the meeting to a different time (not to exceed thirty days) and/or place until a quorum be had. No notice other than announcement at the meeting need be given of the time and or place of such adjourned meeting.

Section 3:15 Actions By Board Without A Meeting.

Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if written consent, setting forth the action taken, shall be signed by all Directors and filed with the records of the Corporation. Signatures may be obtained by counterpart. The consents shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Directors at a meeting duly held and may be stated as such in any certificate or document filed pursuant to the provisions of Missouri law.

Section 3:16 Conflict of Interest Transactions.

Any transaction in which a noncompensated Director of this Corporation has a material interest shall be approved in advance by the vote of a majority of Directors on the Board (or a committee thereof) who have no direct or indirect interest in the transaction, provided the transaction may not be approved by a single Director. The Directors may only approve the transaction if (a) the material facts of the transaction and the Director's interest are disclosed to the Board (or to a Committee thereof), and (b) the Directors in good faith reasonably believe that the transaction is not unfair to the Corporation. If a majority of the Directors who have no direct or indirect interest in the transaction vote to approve the transaction, a quorum is present for the purpose of approving the conflict of interest transaction. The presence of, or a vote cast by, a Director with a material interest in the transaction does not affect the validity of any action taken under this Section if the transaction is otherwise approved as provided for in this Section. A conflict of interest transaction is not voidable and cannot serve as the basis for imposing liability on a non-compensated Director if the transaction was not unfair to the Corporation at the time it was entered into or is approved as provided in this Section or as otherwise permitted by law. In no event shall any person or other entity dealing with the Directors or Officers be obligated to inquire into the authority of the Directors and Officers to enter into and consummate any contract, transaction or other action.

ARTICLE IV: COMMITTEES

Section 4:1 The Executive Committee.

The Corporation may have an Executive Committee consisting of twothree or more Directors appointed by a majority of all the Directors in office. One of the Directors shall be designated by the Board as chair of the Committee. The Board may delegate, subject to the limitations described in Section 4:45 below, to the Executive Committee any and all authority with respect to the management of the Corporation otherwise vested in the Board, shall have the power at any time to expand or limit the authority of the Executive Committee, or dissolve it, and may fill vacancies in, or change the membership of, the Committee.

Section 4:2 The Finance Committee.

The Corporation may have a Finance Committee consisting of two or more Directors appointed by a majority of all the Directors in office. One of the Directors shall be designated by the Board as chair of the Committee. The Finance Committee is responsible with staff for developing and reviewing fiscal procedures, creating an annual budget, and ensuring that external audits are conducted. The Board must approve the <u>initial annual</u> budget, and all expenditures must be within the budget. Any major change in the budget, <u>defined as a change that alone</u>, or when aggregated with prior changes to the annual budget, results in a ten percent (10%) or greater increase to the initial annual budget, must be approved by the Board.

Section 4:3 Standing Conference Committee.

The Corporation may also have a Standing Conference Committee consisting of two or more persons, who do not need to be Directors, appointed by a majority of all the Directors in office. The Standing Conference Committee may include individuals from within the Evergreen user community, regardless of whether that individual serves on the Board at the time of committee appointment. The Board shall appoint one of the members of the Committee to serve as its chair. The Standing Conference Committee is responsible for planning and running the annual conference of the Corporation, subject to limitations and requirements imposed by the Board. The Board must approve the initial annual conference budget, and all expenditures must be within the budget. Any major change in the annual conference budget, defined as a change that alone, or when aggregated with prior changes to the annual conference budget, results in a ten percent (10%) or greater increase to the initial annual conference budget, must be approved by the Board. Subject to Section 4:5 below, the Board shall have the power at any time to expand or limit the authority of, dissolve, and fill vacancies in, or change the membership of, any such Committee.

Section 4:4 Other Committees.

The Corporation may have other Committees consisting of two or more persons, who do not need to be Directors, appointed by a majority of all the Directors in office. Such other

committees shall consist of at least one Director and may include individuals from within the Evergreen user community, regardless of whether that individual serves on the Board at the time of committee appointment. The Board shall appoint one of the members of the Committee to serve as its chair. The Committee shall have such purposes and such powers as the Board may confer, subject to the limitations described in Section 4:45 below. Subject to Section 4:45 below, the Board shall have the power at any time to expand or limit the authority of, dissolve, and fill vacancies in, or change the membership of, any such Committee.

Section 4:45 Limited Authority of Committees.

The Board may not delegate to any Committee the authority to (a) authorize distributions to Directors, Officers, agents or employees except in exchange for value received, (b) approve or recommend the dissolution, merger or the sale, pledge or transfer of all or substantially all of the Corporation's assets, (c) elect, appoint or remove Directors or fill vacancies on the Board or on any of its Committees, or (d) adopt, amend or repeal the Corporation's Articles or Bylaws.

Section 4:56 Meetings of Committees.

Committees may provide for regular meetings to be held with or without notice at such time and place as the Committee may fix from time to time. Special meetings of Committees may be called by the chair of such committee or twenty (20) percent of the members of such Committee upon delivery to each Committee member, either in person—or, by mail, postage prepaid—and, addressed to such Committee member_at the Committee member's address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, or by email addressed to such Committee member at the Committee member's email address as it appears on the records of the Corporation of no less than two (2) days' notice of the date, time, place and purpose of the meeting. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, the required notice calling the meeting. Each Committee shall keep a record of its proceedings, and shall regularly present such records to the Board.

Section 4:67 Actions of Committees.

Unless otherwise provided by the Board, a majority of the members of any Committee shall constitute a quorum, and the acts of a majority of the members present at a meeting of any Committee at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such Committee. Any action that is required to be or may be taken at a meeting of any Committee established by the Board may be taken without a meeting if consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, are signed by all members of the Committee. The consents shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Committee at a meeting duly held and may be stated as such in any certificate or document filed pursuant to the provisions of Missouri law. The Secretary shall file the consents with the minutes of the meeting of the Committee.

ARTICLE V: OFFICERS

Section 5:1 Officers.

The Officers of the Corporation shall be a President/Chairman of the Board, a Vice-Chairman of the Board, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers as are appointed by the Board. Each Officer shall have such authority and perform such duties as provided in these Bylaws or as the Board from time to time may determine. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except that the offices of President and Vice-Chairman, if a Vice-Chairman office is established, may not be held by the same person at the same time, and the offices of President and Treasurer may not be held by the same person at the same time.

Section 5:2 Appointment and Term of Office.

The Board shall elect or appoint the Officers of the Corporation from a nominating committee established by the Board pursuant to Article IV or from nominations from the floor.

The Officers of the Corporation shall be elected for a one-year term (unless otherwise specified herein) at the annual Board meeting. If the election of Officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as is convenient and the Officers shall take office immediately upon being elected. Vacancies may be filled, or more offices created and filled, at any meeting of the Board. Each Officer shall hold office until his or hersuch person's successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified, until his or hersuch person's death, until he or shesuch person shall resign or until he or shesuch person has been removed in the manner hereinafter provided. Officers may be re-elected for additional terms.

Section 5:3 President/Chairman of the Board.

The President/Chairman of the Board (the "President") shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall have the duties and powers accorded to the office of President as described in Robert's Rules of Order. In addition, the President shall have those powers specified in these Bylaws which include, but shall not be limited to, the powers to: make appointments of committee chairs and represent the Board in signing contracts duly approved by the Board.

Unless otherwise provided by the Board, the President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and shall have general charge of the activities of the Corporation. The President shall keep the Board fully informed of his or herthe President's activities on behalf of the Corporation. In addition, the President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the President by law, the Board, or these Bylaws.

Section 5:4 Vice-Chairman.

The Vice-Chairman, if such office is appointed by the Board, shall have the duties and powers of the President in the event of the President's absence. In the event of the President's death, termination, or incapacity, the Vice-Chairman shall exercise the duties of the President until such time as the Board shall choose to fill the vacated office. Additionally, the Vice-Chairman shall carry out other duties as assigned by the President.

Section 5:5 Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall oversee the keeping of all financial records of the Corporation and shall serve as the Chair of the Finance Committee.

Section 5:6 Secretary.

The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, or as required by law, be custodian of the Corporation's records, keep a register of the addresses and email addresses of all Directors, and have general charge of the books and records of the Corporation. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing minutes of the Director's meetings and for authenticating records of the Corporation. In addition, the Secretary shall perform such duties and have such powers as may be assigned to the Secretary by law, the Board, the President or these Bylaws. The Secretary shall preside over the Board's meetings in the absence of the President and Vice-Chairman.

Section 5:7 Bonding.

If so required by the Board, an Officer shall give bond in such form and amount and with such sureties as the Board may provide, for the faithful discharge of his or hersuch Officer's duties, but the premiums for any such bond shall be borne by the Corporation.

Section 5:8 Resignation of Officers.

An Officer may resign at any time by delivering notice to the Corporation. A resignation is effective when the notice is delivered unless the notice specifies a future effective date.

Section 5:9 Removal of Officers.

The Board, acting through a majority of the Directors, may remove any Officer at any time and for any reason.

Section 5:10 Vacancies.

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board, acting through a majority of the Directors, for the unexpired portion of the term.

ARTICLE VI: MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6:1 Corporate Seal.

The Corporation shall have no seal unless the Board determines that the Corporation shall have one.

Section 6:2 Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be <u>as established by the Board, with the fiscal year initially being</u> from January 1 through December 31.

Section 6:3 Amendments of Bylaws or Articles.

These Bylaws or the Articles may be amended upon approval by the two-thirds $(\frac{2}{3})$ of the Board.

Section 6:4 Use of Funds and Property.

All funds and properties belonging to this Corporation shall be applied for the purposes for which this Corporation is formed as specified in its Articles.

Section 6:5 Acceptance or Rejection of Gifts.

The Board may accept or reject on behalf of the Corporation any money, securities, real or personal property, or any other property, or any services, offered to the Corporation by any person, corporation, or other organization, or by any federal, state or other governmental authority or agency, for any general or specific purposes.

Section 6:6 Execution of Instruments.

All checks, promissory notes, contracts or other instruments to be signed by the Corporation shall be signed by such Officer, Officers, or other parties as the Board may designate from time to time.

Section 6:7 Voting Stock.

Unless otherwise provided by the Board, the President shall have full power and authority on behalf of the Corporation (a) to act and vote as fully as the Corporation might do if present at any meeting of the shareholders of another corporation in which this Corporation may hold stock; (b) to waive notice of and consent to the holding of any such meeting; and (c) to sign a consent to action in lieu of such meeting.

Section 6:8 Registered Securities.

Stock or other registered securities of the Corporation may, if determined by the Board, be issued in the name of a nominee designated by the Board, or the Board may establish a trust or agency account with a bank or trust company in which such stock or other securities may be held, and may delegate to the trustee or agent such investment powers as it may see fit, including specifically full power and authority to make investments at the sole discretion of such trustee or agent. The Board may pay any such trustee or agent such compensation as the Board deems reasonable.

Section 6:9 Executive Director; Other Employees and Contractors.

The Board may, at its discretion, hire a company or individual to perform certain executive functions of the Corporation (the "Executive Director"), pursuant to this Section. The Board may, at its discretion, further hire other companies and individuals to perform services for the Corporation, as deemed necessary or desirable by a majority of the Board of Directors.

Section 6:10 Severability.

If any word, clause, or provision of these Bylaws shall, for any reason, be determined to be invalid or ineffective, the provisions hereof shall not otherwise be affected thereby but shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 6:11 Books and Records.

- A. <u>Permanent Records</u>. The Corporation shall maintain as permanent records minutes of all meetings of the Board and committees of the Board and records of any actions taken by them without a meeting.
- B. Other Records. The Corporation shall maintain at its principal office a copy of (a) the Corporation's current Articles and Bylaws, including all amendments, (b) Board resolutions relating to the characteristics, qualifications, rights, limitations and obligations of the Directors, (c) all written official notices to the Board within the past three years, (d) a list of the names and addresses of the Corporation's current Directors and Officers, (e) the Corporation's most recent annual report filed with the Secretary of State, and (f) appropriate financial statements of the Corporation's income and expenses and other appropriate accounting records. These records shall be maintained either in written form or a form capable of conversion into written form within a reasonable period of time.
- C. <u>Inspection of Records</u>. The Corporation shall permit the Directors to inspect the Corporation's records to the extent permitted by law.
- D. <u>Inspection Procedure</u>. Any Director and <u>his or hersuch Director's</u> attorney or agent requesting inspection of the Corporation's records must (a) give the Corporation written notice at least five business days prior to the desired inspection, <u>and</u> (b) describe with reasonable particularity the purpose and the

records the individual desires to inspect, and (c) demonstrate a direct connection between the purpose for inspection and the requested records. The Corporation may charge a fee for the cost of labor and materials necessary to comply with the request.

Section 6:12 Indemnification and Liability of Directors and Officers.

- A. Each person who is or was a Director or Officer of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director or officer of another corporation (including the heirs, personal representatives, or estate of such person) shall be indemnified by the Corporation as a matter of right to the full extent permitted or authorized by the laws of the State of Missouri, as now in effect and as hereafter amended, against any liability, judgment, fine, amount paid in settlement, cost and expense (including attorneys' fees) asserted or threatened against and incurred by such person (other than in an action by or in the right of the Corporation) in his or hersuch person's capacity as or arising out of his or hersuch person's status as a Director or Officer of the Corporation or, if serving at the request of the Corporation, as a director or officer of another corporation, if he or shesuch person acted in good faith and in a manner he or shesuch person reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, he or shesuch person had no reason to believe his or hersuch person's conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which hesuch person reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, or, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, that he or shesuch person had reason to believe that his or hersuch person's conduct was unlawful.
- B. The Corporation shall also indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he or she such person is or was a Director or Officer of the Corporation or, if serving at the request of the Corporation, as a director or officer of another corporation, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or hersuch person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he or she such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or shesuch person reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or hersuch person's duty to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in view

- of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonable entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.
- C. The indemnification provided by this Section shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under any other provision of these Bylaws or under any agreement, vote of disinterested directors or otherwise, and shall not limit in any way any right which the Corporation may have to make different or further indemnifications with respect to the same or different persons or classes of persons.
- D. Any indemnification provided by this Section (unless ordered by a court<u>of</u> competent jurisdiction) shall be made by the Corporation<u>only upon</u>, unless the Directors of the Corporation make a determination, pursuant to the following, at any time, that indemnification of the Director or Officer is properimproper in the circumstances because he or shesuch person has not met the applicable standard of conduct set forth herein. Such determination shall be made by the Board upon a majoritytwo-thirds (2/3) vote of a quorum consisting of Directors whothat were not parties to such the relevant action, suit or proceeding; or if such a quorum is not obtainable, or, even if so obtainable, a majority if two-thirds (2/3) of Directors whothat were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding so directs, direct, then by independent legal counsel in a written opinion. Upon a determination pursuant to the foregoing that indemnification is improper under the circumstances, the Corporation shall cease advancing or refuse to advance funds to such Director or Officer, unless ordered otherwise by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- E. Expenses incurred by an Officer or Director of the Corporation in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, proceeding or investigation may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, proceeding or investigation, as authorized in the manner set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph, upon receipt of a written promise by or on behalf of the Director or Officer to repay such amount in the event it shall ultimately be determined that he or shesuch person is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation under the provisions of this Article.
- F. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director or Officer of the Corporation or, if serving at the request of the Corporation, who is or was serving as a Director or Officer of another corporation, against any liability asserted against him.or.hersuch.person and incurred by him.or.hersuch.person in any such capacity, or arising out of his.or.hersuch.person's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him.or.hersuch.person against such liability under the provisions of this Section.
- G. No person shall be liable to the Corporation for any loss, damage, liability or expense suffered by it on account of any action taken or omitted to be taken by

him or hersuch person as a Director or Officer of the Corporation or of any other corporation which he or shesuch person serves as a director or officer at the request of the Corporation, if such person (i) exercised the same degree of care and skill as a prudent person would have exercised under the circumstances in the conduct of his or hersuch prudent person's own affairs, or (ii) took or omitted to take such action in reliance upon advice of counsel for the Corporation, or for such other corporation, or upon statements made or information furnished by Directors, Officers, employees or agents of the Corporation, or of such other corporation, which he or shesuch person had no reasonable grounds to disbelieve.

H. To the extent that the foregoing provisions concerning indemnification and liability conflict with any provisions of the Articles, the said Articles shall control.

Section 6:13 Dissolution.

The Corporation may be dissolved and wound up upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Board. In the event of dissolution of the Corporation or other winding up of its affairs or liquidation of its assets, all assets of the Corporation remaining after the payment of the Corporation's debts shall be conveyed or distributed only to such organization(s) created and operated for nonprofit purposes similar to the Corporation, as the Board may determine by majority vote, provided that such organization(s) qualify at that time as an exempt organization(s) under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. To the extent that the foregoing provisions concerning distribution of the Corporation's assets conflict with any provisions of the Articles, the said Articles shall control.